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November 16, 2016 
 
 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
 

To 
 

Bid #09-16-17-05 “Service Contractor for Deferred Compensation 457(b) & 401(a) Plans” 
 

 
This addendum shall be part of the Purchasing documents for the above captioned Bid.  This addendum is to be 
acknowledged by the bidder by signing as provided below and returning with the bidder’s proposal. 
 
 
SEE ATTACHED: 
 

City’s Response to Questions, 17-pages 
File Submit Detail (requested document), 1-page 
City of Danbury Deferred Compensation Plan (requested document), 44-pages 
City of Danbury 401(A) Retirement Plan (requested document), 45-pages 
 

BID DUE DATE: Remains the same:  no later than 2:00 PM on Monday, December 5, 2016 

  
 
Receipt of the addendum is hereby acknowledged.   
   
Bidder ______________________________  
   
Signature ______________________________  
   
Title ______________________________  
   
Date ______________________________ 

 
 

 
   

Charles J. Volpe, Jr. 
Purchasing Agent 
City of Danbury 

 

 



City's Response to Questions 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION SECTION 457(b) & 401(a) Plans 

FOR THE 

City of Danbury Employees 

155 Deer Hill Avenue 

Danbury, CT 06810 

RFP # 09-16-17-05 

Proposals Due:  December 5, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. 

Purchasing Agent 

City of Danbury 

155 Deer Hill Avenue 

Danbury, CT  06810 

Phone: 203-797-4571 
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What is the mapping strategy? Like Fund, LifeSpan Models, etc. 

It has not yet been determined if there will be a mapping to ‘similar’ funds, to Target Date funds, or 
keep existing funds. 

 

What is the current crediting rate on the Stable Value?  

The “stable value” option is MassMutual’s General Account.  Current rate 3.35% 

The 457 has a 12 month put on the Stable Value and the 401(a) has a 6 over 5 provision, are there 
any other MVAs, individual contract exchanges, restrictions on this plan? 

There are no other restrictions.  The contract is a Group Contract. 

 

What are the eligible participants for both plans? 

457(b) – all employees 

401(a) – only new hires covered by specific collective bargaining units, with the potential for an 
additional 75 eligible employees beginning July 1, 2017 

 

How many unique participants are there? Are there any overlap between the two plans? 

457(b) – 407 active employees 

401(a) –   38 active employees 

Currently there are six (6) employees who are required to contribute to the 401(a) Plan who also 
participate in the 457(b) Plan. 

 

Does this plan need fee disclosures and reg mailings included in pricing? 

 Yes 

 

Does this plan need 3(21) or 3(38) coverage? 

Hooker & Holcombe is the Investment Advisor and acts as Co-Fiduciary in a 3(21) capacity. 
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Does this plan want onsite support? If so, how many days per year? 

Yes. 

The overall objective of the City’s deferred compensation program is to educate employees of the 
importance of saving incrementally over a long period of time for their future financial security thus 
increasing employee participation and deferrals into the plan.  Such plan should be unique for each 
individual after an analytical and thoughtful risk assessment throughout each stage of their life. 

 We would like to review a plan from vendors that addresses this overall objective.  This plan can 
include (but is not limited to) a combination of individual meetings, group meetings, direct mailings, 
online seminars and other presentations that would promote such objectives. 

 

Should any broker comp/GDC, or Plan Account Funding/ERISA be included in our quote? If so, how 
much? 

 
As it currently stands, there is an “ERISA” type bucket where excess revenue share is held and 
distributed back to participants on an annual basis.   

 

Do the 457(b) and 401(a) offer the same fund line-up? If not, please provide the fund line-up that is 
currently offered for each plan? Page 5 section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Investment Options 

Please provide a complete breakdown of assets by fund including ticker symbols for each plan. Page 
5 section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Investment Options 
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Below are funds and asset holdings as of September 30, 2016.  It is anticipated that there will be a 
reduction of funds available starting July 01, 2017. 

457(b) 

Ticker Investment Name Total Assets 

JSRAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT INC $9,383.75  

JSFAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2015 

$17,408.84  

DIISX DREYFUS INTL STK INDX $32,825.01  

PSRAX PIONEER STRATEGIC INCOME $38,197.05  

MFGHX MFS GOVERNMENT SECURITIES $47,120.30  

TPINX TEMPLETON GLOBAL BOND $51,930.86  

JNSAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2025 

$59,299.08  

PRTNX PIMCO REAL RETURN $63,142.91  

WASYX IVY ASSET STRATEGY $66,117.02  

SRJAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2035 

$155,580.62  

WAPIX WESTERN ASSET CORE BD $169,089.41  

PTTAX PIMCO TOTAL RETURN $216,565.63  

JSAAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2045 

$221,771.99  

ODMAX OPPENHEIMER DEVELOPING 
MARKETS 

$236,930.55  

PHYIX PUTNAM HIGH YIELD ADVANTAGE $238,465.88  

PESPX DREYFUS MIDCAP INDX $342,568.91  

TEMFX TEMPLETON FOREIGN $344,596.20  

IARAX INVESCO REAL ESTATE $530,038.62  
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ACLAX AMERICAN CENTURY MID CAP VALUE $613,846.83  

HIAOX HARTFORD INTERNATL OPPS HLS $671,778.20  

NBSTX NEUBERGER BERMAN SOCIALLY RESP $696,049.71  

HIALX HARTFORD GLOBAL GROWTH HLS $720,342.36  

HIADX HARTFORD DIVIDEND & GROWTH 
HLS 

$737,608.59  

DISSX DREYFUS SMALLCAP STK INDX $783,878.21  

MMUFX MFS UTILITIES $866,386.91  

AASSX AMERICAN BEACON SC VALUE $891,293.58  

PEOPX DREYFUS S&P 500 INDEX $1,064,482.91  

ACEIX INVESCO EQUITY AND INCOME $1,181,163.67  

HIAHX HARTFORD HEALTHCARE HLS $1,181,716.66  

HIASX HARTFORD SMALL COMPANY HLS $1,229,483.71  

HPEAX HIGHLAND PREMIER GROWTH 
EQUITY 

$1,967,751.95  

TWEIX AMERICAN CENTURY EQUITY 
INCOME 

$2,695,884.98  

HIMCX HARTFORD MIDCAP HLS $3,777,233.03  

HIACX HARTFORD CAPITAL APPRECTN HLS $6,551,936.34  

 GENERAL ACCOUNT $20,926,658.03  

  $49,398,528.30  
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401(a) 

Ticker Investment Name Total Assets 

TEMFX TEMPLETON FOREIGN $1,472.00  

MFGHX MFS GOVERNMENT SECURITIES $3,248.74  

IARAX INVESCO REAL ESTATE $3,565.81  

HDGSX THE HARTFORD DIV AND GROWTH $4,434.57  

IHSSX THE HARTFORD SMALL COMPANY $4,930.22  

PHYIX PUTNAM HIGH YIELD ADVANTAGE $4,814.31  

FRSGX FRANKLIN SMALL-MID CAP GROWTH $5,448.21  

MSAVX INVESCO AMERICAN VALUE $6,432.28  

HGHSX THE HARTFORD HEALTHCARE  $6,661.60  

ITHSX THE HARTFORD CAPITAL APPRCTN $7,111.63  

TPINX TEMPLETON GLOBAL BOND $7,240.55  

JSFAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2015 

$7,710.73  

PRTNX PIMCO REAL RETURN $13,768.00  

PTTAX PIMCO TOTAL RETURN $10,652.21  

HIALX HARTFORD GLOBAL GROWTH HLS $11,156.81  

DISSX DREYFUS SMALLCAP STK INDX $12,927.35  

IHOSX THE HARTFORD INTERNATL OPPS $12,869.86  

JNSAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2025 

$13,937.96  

PESPX DREYFUS MIDCAP INDX $15,513.01  

PSRAX PIONEER STRATEGIC INCOME $16,845.18  

TWEAX AMERICAN CENTURY EQUITY 
INCOME 

$17,265.04  
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ODMAX OPPENHEIMER DEVELOPING 
MARKETS 

$18,596.93  

WASYX IVY ASSET STRATEGY $20,960.42  

JSAAX JP MORGAN SMARTRETIREMENT 
2045 

$27,702.35  

HPEAX HIGHLAND PREMIER GROWTH 
EQUITY 

$31,513.10  

PEOPX DREYFUS S&P 500 INDEX $33,354.59  

 GENERAL ACCOUNT $264,584.72  

  $584,718.18  

 

 

Please provide information on the fixed funds in the plan today. What is the current crediting rate? 
What are the expense ratios? Page 5 section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Investment Options 

The fixed fund is MassMutual’s General Account.  Current rate is 3.35% 

 

Does the City have a preference for a fixed option type? Would you prefer a stable value or general 
account solution? Page 5 section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Investment Options 

There is no preference. 

 

Please provide the current service days provided by your recordkeepers. How many group meetings 
and how many individual meetings were held in 2015? How many days per year would the City 
prefer going forward? Page 5 Section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Full Enrollment & 
Communications for Plan Enrollment 

The overall objective of the City’s deferred compensation program is to educate employees of the 
importance of saving incrementally over a long period of time for their future financial security thus 
increasing employee participation and deferrals into the plan.  Such plan should be unique for each 
individual after an analytical and thoughtful risk assessment throughout each stage of their life. 
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 We would like to review a plan from vendors that addresses this overall objective.  This plan can 
include (but is not limited to) a combination of individual meetings, group meetings, direct mailings, 
online seminars and other presentations that would promote such objectives. 

 

Please provide the current plan documents and service agreements for the 457(b) and 401(a) plan. 
Page 5 Section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Plan Documentation and Filing 

Current Plan documents are included in PDF format.  Service agreements with MassMutal are not 
included. 

 

What is your current process for participants to initiate a loan: online, paper, or both? How are loans 
repaid: payroll deduction, ACH, or other? Page 5 Section 1.3 Scope of Goods and Services/Loan 
Provision 

Loans are initiated with a paper application (form to be provided by recordkeeper). 

Loans are repaid through payroll deduction.  Early pay-off is processed with provider or on 
provider’s website. 

 

You mention on page 5 the investment line-up is not being considered within the RFP, however, on 
page 24, the City has requested information for each proprietary investment vehicle. To clarify, does 
the City want a proposed fund line-up or only a stable value fund option? Page 5 section 1.3 Scope 
of Goods and Services/Investment Options & Page 24 Section 4.8 Investment/Question 3  

The Plan Sponsor prefers an open architecture offering.   If there are mandatory proprietary 
vehicles, such as Target Date Funds and/or Stable Value, please disclose the information requested. 

 

What are the current fees for the plan today? Page 7 Section 1.3 Breakdown of all fees and cost 

The Plan Sponsor prefers not to disclose this. 

 

Is there any overlap with participants between the 457(b) & 401(a) plans? If so, can the City provide 
the total unique participants between the two plans? Page 8 Section 1.4 Background Information 

457(b) = 407 active employees contributing 

401(a) =   38 active employees  
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Please provide the vesting schedule. Page 10 Section 1.4 Background Information/401(a) Plan Data 

Vesting schedules are included in the attached Plan documents. 

  

Please provide a sample of the current contribution file feed that the plan uses today. Please 
provide data definitions as well as field level definitions for the file. Page 22 Section 4.5 
Administration/Recordkeeping/Question 10 

A deduction report is generated through the City payroll process and converted into a csv file in the 
file format supplied by the current provider (see also one page pdf, “File Submit Detail”). 

 

Does the City have any surrender charges associated with the transfer of participant accounts? If so, 
what is the total amount of the surrender charge? Page 23 Section 4.6 
Transition/Conversion/Question 2 

There are no surrender charges other than the put feature on the General Account.  The Plans are 
group contracts, not individual contracts. 

 

Does the plan currently utilize a self directed brokerage option? If so, please provide the company 
being used as well as the total assets in the program today. Page 24 Section 4.8 Investments/ 
Question 4 

The Plan does not utilize a self-directed brokerage option. 

 

Does the plan currently have managed account programs? If so, please provide the total assets in 
those programs today. Page 24 Section 4.8 Investments/ Question 5 

The Plans offer five risk based model strategies using funds in the lineup. The 457(b) has $251,637 
and the 401(a) has $126,272 in assets. 

 

Please indicate if any of the revenue produced by the fund line-up is kept by the recordkeeper or 
returned to the plan and or the participants. Page 25 Section 4.8 Investments/ Question 8 

Excess revenue share is distributed back to the Plan participants. 
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Please provide a list of any ancillary fees that are currently being charged to the plan and or its 
participants.  i.e) Loans, SDBA, financial advice, QDRO’s, etc. Page 26 Section 4.10 Fee/Expense 
Proposal 

The Plan Sponsor prefers not to disclose this. 

 

Does the plan prefer a revenue requirement (implicit fee paid through revenue share of the plan) or 
an explicit per participant fee (asset based or per head) fee structure? Page 26 Section 4.10 
Fee/Expense Proposal 

The Plan Sponsor would consider both options. 

 

Does the plan prefer a fee assuming no proprietary funds in the plan? Or, would the plan accept no 
fee assuming proprietary funds? Page 26 Section 4.10 Fee/Expense Proposal 

The Plan Sponsor prefers a fee assuming no proprietary funds but would consider a proprietary 
Stable Value or General Account on the fixed side. 

 

 

How many unique participants are in the plan? 

457(b) = 407 active employees; 401(a) = 38 employees 

 

Please provide the total number of eligible participants.   

605 employees are eligible for the 457 plan. 

There is no “eligibility” for the 401 plan – enrollment is required for employees covered by specific 
collective bargaining agreements.  There is the potential for an additional 75 eligible employees 
beginning July 1, 2017 

 

Please provide quarterly account statements for the period ending June 30, 2016, for the 401 and 
457 plans.  

The Plan Sponsor prefers not to disclose this. 
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How often are the current provider’s representatives on-site to provide services? Please provide 
information regarding the frequency and nature of the individual and group educational meetings.  

The overall objective of the City’s deferred compensation program is to educate employees of the 
importance of saving incrementally over a long period of time for their future financial security thus 
increasing employee participation and deferrals into the plan.  Such plan should be unique for each 
individual after an analytical and thoughtful risk assessment throughout each stage of their life. 

 We would like to review a plan from vendors that addresses this overall objective.  This plan can 
include (but is not limited to) a combination of individual meetings, group meetings, direct mailings, 
online seminars and other presentations that would promote such objectives. 

 

Please confirm that the date of September 30, 2010, is correct.  

No, the date should be September 30, 2016. 

  

Please confirm that the date of September 30, 2010, is correct.  

No, the date should be September 30, 2016. 

 

Is there an existing Managed Accounts program? 

The Plans offer five risk based model strategies using funds in the lineup. The 457(b) has $251,637 
and the 401(a) has $126,272 in assets. 

 

Please confirm the number of unique participants with accounts in all Plan types. 

457(b) = 407 active employees;  401(a) = 38 employees 

 

In regard to Section 4.6, question 2, have any transition fees from the current provider been 
identified? Please provide the anticipated amount of fees to be reimbursed. 

There are no surrender charges other than the put feature on the General Account.  The Plans are 
group contracts, not individual contracts. 
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In regard to Section 4.8, question 3, Nationwide is prepared to offer the City full open architecture 
for all variable investments with no proprietary requirements. Is the City interested in receiving 
detailed investment information for non-required proprietary investments? 

Yes 

 

Section 1.4, p. 8 - can you please confirm there are 371 participants with a balance in the 457b plan 
and 42 participants with a balance in the 401a?  

Confirmed 

 

Please provide the plan documents for each plan. 

See attached. 

  

What is going well with the plans today?  

Participation, interest rate on the General Account, open fund architecture,  

 
 

What would you like to see improved? 

Participant education and one on ones. 

  

Can you please describe the current pricing structure, (e.g. asset based, per participant, a 
combination of both)?  

Asset Based 

 

 What are the primary communication objectives for the plan (e.g., increasing deferrals, asset 
diversification, retirement income, retirement planning)?  

All of the above. 
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What are the current challenges or issues regarding communications and/or education, if any?  

The main challenge regarding communications and education is that the City does not have a plan. 

 

What is the preferred method to communicate to employees?  

The preferred method of communication would be electronically, but that isn't an option for every 
employee.  Most employees in Public Works, for example, do not have a City email account.  For this 
reason, a combination of communication methods is needed. 

 

Are any communications sent electronically today? If no, are you open to using them in the future?  

There are no current electronic communications, but the Plan is open to using this method. 

 

Are communications needed in languages other than English?  

No 

 

Does the City produce any internal communications that the City would like the provider to tap into 
and provide support? (e.g. employee or employer newsletters)  

No, but we would like to include a link to the provider’s website from the City website. 

 

Please tell us a little more about the employees:  

Average age:   47 

Average length of employment:  14 years 

Percentage male/female  76% male, 24 % female 

 

How does the City currently conduct employee meetings?  

Historically, how many employee/members meetings are conducted annually?  

12-18 onsite days for one-on-one meetings 
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Is there a need for on-site education in languages other than English? 

No 

 

Please confirm this proposal is for a Sole Recordkeeper.   

Confirmed 

  

Please provide the number of unique SSNs in each plan in order to identify the number of duplicate 
participants in each plan. 

457(b) = 407 active employees 

 401(a) = 38 employees    

 

What is the total number of eligible employees for each plan? 

605 active employees are eligible for the 457 plan.  

 There is no “eligibility” for the 401 plan – enrollment is required for employees covered by specific 
collective bargaining agreements.  There is the potential for an additional 75 eligible employees 
beginning July 1, 2017 

 

Would you like us to provide a sample investment lineup?  Can you provide the current investment 
lineup for each plan? 

A sample investment lineup is not required. 

 

In 4.8, # 3, TIAA does not have any proprietary restrictions. However, we do offer propietary 
investment vehicles.  Please confirm whether all proprietary “options” are being requested or just 
any proprietary “requirements”. 

Just proprietary requirements. 
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In 4.8, #8, please clarify your request.  Our firm has over 12,000 funds and hundreds of revenue 
share agreements with the respective fund companies. 

Just disclose those fund families you do not have revenue share. 

 

What is the current value of the Discontinuance Fee (12 month put) in the fixed account for each 
plan? 

At MassMutual’s discretion, there is a 12 month “Put” feature on the contract. There is no mark-to-
market or unit price adjustment. 

 

What fiduciary services will be provided by H & H?  

H&H is the investment advisor and serves as co-fiduciary to the Plans. 

 

How are the 401(a) match contributions currently calculated? 

The 5% 401(a) match contributions are calculated through the City’s internal payroll processing and 
are remitted at the same time as employee contributions. 

  

 
Reference Page 6, #2 – “Any contract entered into by the City must stipulate that there will be no 
front-end charges, and no back-end charges/penalties of any kind. In addition, there will be no 
restrictions or penalties on participant transfers or withdrawals, with the possible exception of 
stable value equity wash (mark-to-market) provisions.”   Will the City of Danbury consider a general 
account/fixed product with a 12-month put? 

Yes. 

Please provide MassMutual’s current crediting rate and guaranteed minimum interest rate on the 
MassMutual fixed/stable value account. 

The  MassMutual General Account is currently fixed at 3.35% with a reset on July 1, 2017. 

  

Would the City entertain the vendor reviewing and approving unforeseeable emergency 
withdrawals on its behalf as an alternative to the provider giving a recommendation to the City?   

Yes, as long as the provider assumes responsibility for IRS code compliance 

15



How many employees are eligible to participate in the 457 plan?  How many employees are eligible 
to participate in the 401(a) plan? 

605 active employees are eligible for the 457 plan. 

There is no “eligibility” for the 401 plan – enrollment is required for employees covered by specific 
collective bargaining agreements.  There is the potential for an additional 75 eligible employees 
beginning July 1, 2017. 

 

 What is the number of eligible employees in each plan?   

457(b) = 407 active employees; 401(a) = 38 employees 

 

What were the annual contributions for each of the last 3 years? 

2013:  $2,100,280 

2014:  $2,162,649 

2015:  $2,304,769 

 

What were the annual distributions for each of the last 3 years? 

2013:  $1,430,188 

2014:  $   606,371 

2015:  $1,956,326 

 

What were the total assets for each of the last 3 years? 

2013:  $42,231,207 

2014:  $46,615,666 

2015:  $47,440,440 

 

Does the plan currently have unitized portfolios? 

No. 
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Does the plan have any self-directed brokerage accounts?  If so, what is the number of accounts and 
what is the amount of assets in these accounts? 

No. 
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